
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
AUGUST 16, 2010 

CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
  

 





 

 

      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
August 16, 2010 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: Mayor Pro Tem Fleming 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations Scheduled 1 

a) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the 
months of May and June 2010, Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart will 
present a check in the amount of $724.00 to the Boys & Girls Club of Troy. ....... 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 No Public Hearings 1 



 

 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 1 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 2 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

H-1 No Postponed Items 2 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 2 

I-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 2 

I-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 2 

I-3 Request for Closed Session – None Requested 2 

I-4 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement Policy 2 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 4 

J-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 4 

J-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 4 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 4 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 4 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: None Submitted 4 

J-5 Amendment to Agreement Between Troy Historical Society and City of Troy to 
Expand the Troy Museum and Historic Village 4 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 5 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 5 



 

 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
some future point in time): None Submitted 5 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 5 

L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 5 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 5 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 5 

N. REPORTS 5 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 5 

a) Planning Commission/Draft – July 13, 2010 ......................................................... 5 
b) Planning Commission/Final – July 13, 2010 ......................................................... 5 

N-2 Department Reports: 5 

a) City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters – 30th Annual Actuarial 
Valuation Report – December 31, 2009 ............................................................... 5 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted 5 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 5 

N-5  Memorandum from Carol K. Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director Regarding  
“Inquiry from Council Member Regarding Park Signs” 5 

O. STUDY ITEMS 5 

O-1  Code of Conduct 5 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 6 

P-1 Closed Session – None Requested 6 



 

 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 6 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 6 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 6 

Monday, August 23, 2010 Regular City Council ...................................................... 6 
Monday, September 13, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................ 6 
Monday, September 20, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................ 6 
Monday, September 27, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................ 6 
Monday, October 4, 2010 Regular City Council ...................................................... 6 
Monday, October 11, 2010 Regular City Council .................................................... 6 
Monday, October 18, 2010 Regular City Council .................................................... 6 
Monday, November 8, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................... 6 
Monday, November 15, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................. 6 
Monday, November 22, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................. 6 
Monday, December 6, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................... 6 
Monday, December 13, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................. 6 
Monday, December 20, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................. 6 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 16, 2010 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION: Mayor Pro Tem Fleming 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of              at the 
Regular City Council Meeting of Monday, August 16, 2010 due to                                 . 
 
Yes: 
No: 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations Scheduled 
 
a) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the months of 

May and June 2010, Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart will present a check in 
the amount of $724.00 to the Boys & Girls Club of Troy. 

 
D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 
 
F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – 
Members of the Public and Visitors 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 16, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 

the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

(5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any other item 
as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 
members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related to 
topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may be 
limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
H-1 No Postponed Items 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 
I-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session – None Requested 
 
I-4 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement Policy 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the tax base of the community, (c) reducing 
economic obsolescence, (d) providing homogenous industrial areas, (e) encouraging 
expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities, and (g) encouraging attractive, viable 
building sites and (h) enhance our economic development tools to attract and retain 
businesses; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 16, 2010 
 

- 3 - 

WHEREAS, The Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, empowers 
cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax abatements for eligible 
properties established by the Act;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the following 
minimum criteria, as authorized by the Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198):  
 

1.  An Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) tax abatement shall not be granted 
until there is compliance with MCL 207.559; and  
 

2.  Any real and/or personal property tax abatement must be at a minimum, revenue 
neutral to the City of Troy.  

 
3.  Leasehold property shall not qualify for an IFEC tax abatement unless applicant is 

responsible for payment of the property taxes, and can demonstrate timely payment of 
property taxes upon the City’s request; and 

 
4.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued for a period or term exceeding 12 years; and 

 
5.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued unless an Applicant will create more than 10 

jobs and/or has a personal property investment of at least $750,000.00, and/or owns 
the underlying real property or has a lease for the underlying property for a minimum 
term of 5 years, as long as two of the three criteria are satisfied. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the use of the 
following matrix to calculate the length of an IFEC tax abatement, where the increase in the 
number of jobs created will increase the term of the IFEC abatement, and similarly the increase 
in the personal property investment and the ownership/lease conditions on the real property will 
increase the term of the IFEC abatement: 
 

Tax Abatement Matrix for Real and Personal Property 

Job Creation Building Terms 
RP and/or PP 

Investment 
10 - 24 1 year Own 4 years  $ 750,000  1 year 
 
25 - 49 2 years Lease    $ 2,000,000  2 years 
 
50 - 99 3 years 5 year 1 Year  $ 5,000,000  3 years 
 
100 - 149 4 years 6 - 9 year 2 years  $ 10,000,000  4 years 
 
150 - 199 5 years 10 + year 4 years  $ 20,000,000  5 years 
 
200 + 6 years         

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the implementation 
of an application fee equal to 2% of the estimated personal property taxes abated under the 
terms of the IFEC tax abatement, or the actual costs of processing the application, whichever is 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 16, 2010 
 

- 4 - 

less, and the City of Troy will not charge or collect any other fees for the application, in keeping 
with MCL 207.555 (3).  
 
Yes: 
No: 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
J-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
J-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of August 9, 2010 as submitted. 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: None Submitted 
 
J-5 Amendment to Agreement Between Troy Historical Society and City of Troy to 

Expand the Troy Museum and Historic Village 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Amendment to Agreement by and 
between the Troy Historical Society and the City of Troy to expand the Troy Museum and 
Historic Village; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 16, 2010 
 

- 5 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the document; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time): None Submitted  
 
L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 
 

L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced  

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

N. REPORTS  
N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Planning Commission/Draft – July 13, 2010 
b) Planning Commission/Final – July 13, 2010  

N-2 Department Reports:  
a) City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters – 30th Annual Actuarial Valuation 

Report – December 31, 2009 
 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted 
 
N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 
N-5  Memorandum from Carol K. Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director Regarding 
 “Inquiry from Council Member Regarding Park Signs” 

O. STUDY ITEMS 
O-1  Code of Conduct 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 16, 2010 
 

- 6 - 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 
P-1 Closed Session – None Requested 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
No Future City Council Public Hearings Scheduled 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, August 23, 2010 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 13, 2010 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 20, 2010 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 27, 2010 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 4, 2010 .......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 11, 2010 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, October 18, 2010 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, November 8, 2010 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 15, 2010 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 22, 2010 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 6, 2010 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 13, 2010 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 20, 2010 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
August 11, 2010  
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager     
  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration  
  Mark F. Miller, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  
  Nino Licari, City Assessor 
  Pamela Valentik, Economic Development Specialist 
  
Subject: Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement Policy 
 
 
On August 9, 2010, City Council conducted a study session to discuss the current environment for 
attracting businesses to the City of Troy and the tools necessary to market Troy as the place to do 
business.  One tool that was specifically discussed was the Industrial Facilities Tax Abatement (P.A. 
198 of 1974).  Tax abatements have been used by City Council to incentivize new investment in 
personal property.  While the guidelines within P.A. 198 allow communities to provide a 50% 
abatement on both real and personal property, Troy’s current policy only allows for businesses to be 
eligible for an abatement on their new personal property.   
 
In recent months, City Management has been approached by prospective businesses, property 
owners and fellow economic development agencies to consider extending our tax abatement policy to 
include real property.  Discussion during the August 9th study session led to the need to take 
advantage of available tools to make Troy competitive when bidding on large attraction and retention 
projects. Thus City Management has prepared an amended tax abatement policy to include real 
property for your review and consideration. 
 
The amended tax abatement policy will addresses a number of items.  First of all, companies making 
capital investments to their operations may be eligible for both real property (building only) and/or 
personal property.  In order for a company to be eligible for a real property tax abatement they must 
build (or lease with the liability of all real property taxes) a new facility or make improvements to a 
facility that increase the value of the structure.  The applicant will only receive a 50% abatement 
towards their new real property tax liability, based on the increased value of the structure. 
 
The amended policy will eliminate reference to zoning of the property and more accurately follow the 
criteria for eligible projects under the guidelines of PA 198 of 1974 (industrial and high tech 
operations).  The amended policy will also address the need for all approved tax abatements to be 
revenue neutral to the City of Troy.  Whereas the combination of the new abated personal property 
(taxed at half the normal rate) and any abated real property (taxed at half the normal rate) should at 
least generate a total amount of City taxes equal to the current taxes on the structure and land. 
 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
I-04



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
The amended policy will continue to require the applicant to create more than 10 jobs and/or have a 
personal property investment of at least $750,000, and/or own the underlying real property or have a 
lease for the underlying property for a minimum term of five years, as long as two of the three criteria 
are satisfied.   
 
However, note that the amended policy will adjust the matrix to allow for applicants with a lease term 
of five years to be eligible for one year term of the IFEC abatement. 
 
Please see the attached red-lined resolution for the complete recommended changes to the current 
Personal Property Tax Abatement Policy that was adopted by City Council in February of 2009. 
 
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality: 
 
 
 
        
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PV/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2010\08.16.10 – Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement Policy 



E-7      Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement Policy     
 
Resolution #2010- 
Moved by          
Seconded by           
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the industrial tax base of the community, 
(c) reducing economic obsolescence of the industrial base, (d) providing homogenous 
industrial areas, (e) encouraging industrial expansion, (f) providing for improved public 
facilities in industrial areas, and (g) encouraging attractive, viable industrial building 
sites and (h) enhance our economic development tools to attract and retain businesses; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, The Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, 
empowers cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax 
exemptions abatements for certain industrial eligible properties which meet certain 
criteria established by the Act;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the 
following minimum criteria, as authorized by the Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 
No. 198):  
 

1.  An Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) tax abatement shall not be 
granted until there is compliance with MCL 207.559; and  
 
 Real property shall not qualify for an IFEC tax abatement, except for those 
unique situations where there are building improvements that are required to 
support the personal property that otherwise qualifies for a tax abatement; and 

 
2.  Any real and/or personal property tax abatement must be at a minimum, 

revenue neutral to the City of Troy.  
 

3.  Leasehold property shall not qualify for an IFEC tax abatement unless applicant 
is responsible for payment of the property taxes, and can demonstrate timely 
payment of property taxes upon the City’s request; and 

 
4.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued for a period or term exceeding 12 

years; and 
 

5.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued unless an Applicant will create more 
than 10 jobs and/or has a personal property investment of at least $750,000.00, 
and/or owns the underlying real property or has a lease for the underlying 
property that exceeds for a minimum term of 5 years, as long as two of the three 
criteria are satisfied. 
 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the use of 
the following matrix to calculate the length of an IFEC tax abatement, where the 
increase in the number of jobs created will increase the term of the IFEC abatement, 
and similarly the increase in the personal property investment and the ownership/lease 
conditions on the real property will increase the term of the IFEC abatement: 
 

 
Tax Abatement Matrix for Real and Personal Property 

 
Job Creation Building Terms 

RP and/or PP 
Investment 

 
10 - 24 1 year Own 4 years  $ 750,000  1 year 

 

 
25 - 49 2 years Lease    $ 2,000,000  2 years 

 

 
50 - 99 3 years 1 - 5 year 1 Year  $ 5,000,000  3 years 

 

 
100 - 149 4 years 6 - 9 year 2 years  $ 10,000,000  4 years 

 

 
150 - 199 5 years 10 + year 4 years  $ 20,000,000  5 years 

 

 
200 + 6 years         

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the 
implementation of an application fee equal to 2 % of the estimated personal property 
taxes abated under the terms of the IFEC tax abatement, or the actual costs of 
processing the application, whichever is less, and the City of Troy will not charge or 
collect any other fees for the application, in keeping with MCL 207.555 (3).  
 
Yes:       
No:                 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft  August 9, 2010 
 

- 1 - 

Joe Maestro of Kensington Community Church gave the Invocation. The Pledge of Allegiance 
to the Flag was given.  
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 
The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, August 9, 2010, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming  
Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 No Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations Scheduled 
 
D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 
 
F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 
William Wylonis Supports amending tax abatement policy 
John Ragan Supports the Troy Nature Center 
James Savage Discussed passage of Transit Authority ballot passage; Opposed to the 

Troy Birmingham Transit System 
Audre Zembrzuski Discussed transportation options for seniors; requested that phone 

numbers be posted on City’s website 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
H-1 No Postponed Items 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft  August 9, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

a) Mayoral Appointments: None Scheduled 
 
b) City Council Appointments/Confirmation:  
 
Resolution #2010-08-166 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONFIRMS the appointment of the following 
person to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Building Code Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) 5-Year Term for 3 Residents: Background, training or  
experience in construction or similar trades; at least one shall be a professional structural or  
civil engineer of architectural engineering experience. 
2 by Ordinance: City Manager and Oakland County Health Department Representative 
 
Teresa Brooks – Oakland County Health Department Rep. ORDINANCE 
 
Yes: All-7  
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
I-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 
c) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
d) City Council Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session – None Requested 
 
I-4 Ratification of Industrial Development District Approved on October 19, 2009 at 
 1400 Rochester  
 
Resolution #2010-08-167 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD), and Plant Rehabilitation District (PRD) for property known as 1400 Rochester, Troy, MI. 
48083-2854, Parcel #88-20-34-226-048, and #88-20-34-226-057, in accordance with City 
Council Policy Resolution #2009-02-042; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has DETERMINED that this district shall 
also be used for Plant Rehabilitation, and that PROPERTY COMPRISING NOT LESS THAN 
50% of the State Equalized Value (SEV) within the District is OBSOLETE; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft  August 9, 2010 
 

- 3 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to forward 
a copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471, 
Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
J-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2010-08-168 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-7  
No: None  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
J-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2010-08-168-J-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of July 26, 2010 as submitted. 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Home Chore Snow 

Removal Services 
 
Resolution #2010-08-168-J-4a 
 
WHEREAS, On August 17, 2009, Troy City Council awarded a contract for seasonal 
requirements of snow removal services for Troy residents using the Home Chore Program with 
an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the low total bidders, MVP Environmental, LLC 
of Troy, as primary contractor and Brantley Development LLC of Westland, as secondary 
contractor, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened July 21, 2009, a copy of which 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft  August 9, 2010 
 

- 4 - 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting (Resolution #2009-08-251 F4a); 
and 
 
WHEREAS, MVP Environmental, LLC has agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew 
their contract under the same pricing, terms and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contract with MVP Environmental, LLC of Troy to provide seasonal requirements of 
snow removal services for Troy residents using the Home Chore Program under the same 
prices, terms and conditions expiring May 1, 2011; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL NOT RENEW the contract, 
which expired May 1, 2010, with Brantley Development LLC, as secondary contractor as their 
services were not needed last season.  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Ice Melt 

Compounds 
 
Resolution #2010-08- 168-J-4b 
 
WHEREAS, On October 19, 2009, Troy City Council awarded a one-year contract to provide 
ice melt compounds with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the low bidder, 
Washington Elevator Co, Inc. of Washington Twp, MI (Resolution #2009-10-312-F-4a); and 
 
WHEREAS, Washington Elevator Co, Inc. has agreed to exercise the option to renew the contract 
for one (1) additional year under the same prices, terms, and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contract for ice melt compounds with Washington Elevator Co, Inc. of Washington 
Twp, MI, under the same terms and conditions at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened September 30, 2009, with a contract expiration of October 31, 2011. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Uniform Rental 

Services 
 
Resolution #2010-08- 168-J-4c 
 
WHEREAS, On November 24, 2008, Troy City Council awarded a two-year contract to provide 
uniform rental services for various City of Troy union employees with an option to renew for two 
additional years to the highest scoring respondent, Unifirst Corporation of Auburn Hills, MI, as a 
result of a best value process in cooperation with Oakland County, which the Troy City Council 
determines to be in the public interest (Resolution #2008-11-351-F-4c) and;  
 
WHEREAS, Unifirst Corporation has agreed to exercise the option to renew the contract for two 
additional years under the same pricing, terms and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the two-year 
option to renew the contract to provide uniform rental services for various City of Troy union 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft  August 9, 2010 
 

- 5 - 

employees with Unifirst Corporation of Auburn Hills at unit prices contained in the tabulation 
opened September 3, 2008, with the contract expiring October 31, 2012. 
 
J-5 City of Troy v William H. Price 
 
Resolution #2010-08- 168-J-5 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed Consent Judgment in 
the condemnation case of City of Troy v William H. Price, et al., (Oakland County Circuit Court 
Case No. 09-097977-CC); and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES payment in the 
amounts stated therein; and  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney’s 
Office to execute the document on behalf of the City of Troy, a copy of which is to be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business 
 
Resolution #2010-08-169 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business to take action on an item that does not appear on the 
Agenda. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Fleming  
No: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Cancel the Monday, August 16, 2010 Regular City Council Meeting 
 
Resolution #2010-08-170 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Schilling 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CANCELS the Monday, August 16, 2010 Regular 
City Council Meeting. 
 
Yes: None 
No: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak  
 
MOTION FAILED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft  August 9, 2010 
 

- 6 - 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time): None Submitted  
 
L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 
 

L-1  Proposed Charter Amendment – Operation of City Owned Library – Submitted by 
Council Member Howrylak  

 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REFERS to the Charter Revision Committee a 
proposal to amend the City Charter to mandate a city owned and operated library; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the Charter Revision 
Committee to discuss the proposal, draft proposed ballot language and make a 
recommendation to the City Council no later than October 9, 2010. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone Proposed Charter Amendment – Operation of City 
Owned Library – Submitted by Council Member Howrylak  
 
Resolution #2010-08-171 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Schilling  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES Proposed Charter Amendment – 
Operation of City Owned Library – Submitted by Council Member Howrylak until after the 
November 2, 2010 General Election 
 
Yes: McGinnis, Slater, Schilling  
No: Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution for Proposed Charter Amendment – Operation of City Owned Library 
– Submitted by Council Member Howrylak  
 
Resolution #2010-08-172 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Fleming  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft  August 9, 2010 
 

- 7 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REFERS to the Charter Revision Committee a 
proposal to amend the City Charter to mandate a city owned and operated library; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the Charter Revision 
Committee to discuss the proposal, draft proposed ballot language and make a 
recommendation to the City Council no later than October 9, 2010. 
 
Yes:  Fleming, Howrylak  
No: Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Kerwin, McGinnis 
 
MOTION FAILED 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
M-1   Council Comments Advanced: 
 
Council Member Fleming stated he would not have supported the “Distracted Drivers 
Ordinance” had he been present when the ordinance came before City Council. Council 
Member Fleming requested a report as to how many citations are issued to drivers violating the 
Distracted Drivers ordinance. 
 
City Manager Szerlag indicated that report will become available in January, 2011. 
 
Council Member McGinnis disagreed with earlier comments made that City Council has done 
nothing to keep the Library open. Council Member McGinnis stated since she has been on City 
Council she and other Council Members have made many difficult budget decisions. Although 
their actions were not specific to the Library, she explained that they have spent many hours on 
reviewing the City’s overall operations, restructuring of the departments and finding ways to 
save money to keep the city operating. 
 
Council Member Beltramini reported that the National League of City’s “Institute for Youth 
Education & Families” has published a new guide on getting authentic engagement from youth 
and suggested that it would be a good publication for Troy’s Youth Council to review. 
 
Council Member Kerwin reported that the Troy Community Center hosted more than one 
hundred visitors last week to learn about sustainable gardening. 
 
Council Member Howrylak clarified that his earlier comments were not about the budget but 
about the Library. He explained no proposals have been brought forward by City Council 
regarding options to keep the Library open. 
 
Council Member Howrylak referenced a political event held at Fire Fighter’s Park over the past 
weekend and asked City Management to clarify the City’s policy regulating political 
organizations to place their campaign signs on city property. 
 
City Manager Szerlag indicated that he will provide that information as a Report and 
Communication at the July 16, 2010 Regular City Council Meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft  August 9, 2010 
 

- 8 - 

Mayor Schilling expressed her concern about the loss of the polling location for Precincts 4 and 
9 due to the inappropriate behavior of candidates and their supporters. 
 
Council Member Howrylak asked for the status of agenda item N-9 Act 164 Library – 11/02/10 
General Election Ballot Question. 
 
City Clerk Bartholomew responded that signatures for all petitions have been certified and 
forwarded to the Attorney General’s Office, State Bureau of Elections and Oakland County 
Elections. She added that it appears that all four will appear on the November ballot.  

N. REPORTS  
N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Troy Historic District Commission/Final – May 18, 2010 
b) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – June 15, 2010  
c) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – June 15, 2010 
d) Troy Historic District Commission/Final – June 16, 2010 
e) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – July 14, 2010  
f) Special Joint Meeting of the City of Birmingham Planning Board and City of Troy 

Planning Commission – July 14, 2010 
Noted and Filed 

N-2 Department Reports:  
a) 2010 Mid-Year Calls for Police Service Report 
b) Economic Development Activity Report- July, 2010 

Noted and Filed 
 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
a) Letter of Appreciation from Gordon Cameron to Tim Richnak Commending a DPW 

Employee for His Expedient Service 
b)  Letter of Appreciation from Dan Smiley to Chief Gary Mayer Expressing his 

Appreciation for having the Opportunity to complete his Student Internship with the 
Police Department 

c) Congratulatory Letter to John Szerlag from State Senator John Pappageorge – District 
13 for Receiving AA Bond Rating from Standard and Poor 

Noted and Filed 
 
N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 
N-5  Report from John Ragan to Troy City Council Regarding Discussions with City of 
 Troy and the Troy Nature Society  

Noted and Filed 
 
N-6  Complete Streets Legislation  

Noted and Filed 
 
N-7  Organizational Structure: Museum and Nature Center 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft  August 9, 2010 
 

- 9 - 

N-8  Precincts 4 and 10 Polling Location – St. Elizabeth Ann Seton Catholic Church 
Noted and Filed 

 
N-9  Act 164 Library – 11/02/10 General Election Ballot Question 

Noted and Filed 

O. STUDY ITEMS 
O-1  Niles Barnard House Relocation 
 
O-2  Tax Abatement Policy  
 
P. CLOSED SESSION: 
P-1 Closed Session – None Requested 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting RECESSED at 8:54 PM. 

The meeting RECONVENED at 9:06 PM. 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:45 PM. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC  
City Clerk 

 



pallottaba
Text Box
J-05













































PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 13, 2010 
  
 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on July 13, 2010, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:40 p.m.) 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Wanda Norman, Planning Department Intern 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-045 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Revised Agenda, as prepared. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-046 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Ullmann 
 
RESOLVED, To amend the motion on the floor to add to the agenda discussion on 
the Transit Center as Agenda item #8-B. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Chair Hutson stated that discussion on the transit center might be more appropriate 
at the joint meeting with Birmingham on July 14th when representation from all 
professions is present and available to address questions and concerns. 
 
Mr. Ullmann expressed a desire to discuss some points tonight prior to the joint 
meeting. 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-01a



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 13, 2010 
  
 
 

2 
 

Vote on the amendment to the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Maxwell, Sanzica, Strat, Tagle, Ullmann 
No: Hutson, Schultz 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:40 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution # PC-2010-07-045, as amended. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:40 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-046 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the June 22, 2010 Special/Study meeting 
as prepared. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Maxwell, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Ullmann 
Abstain: Tagle 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:40 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 899 A) – Proposed 
Automation Alley Addition, West side of Bellingham, South of Big Beaver (2675 
Bellingham), Section 26, Currently Zoned R-C (Research Center) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the Planning Consultant report on the 
proposed Preliminary Site Plan application.  Mr. Branigan addressed the 42 parking 
spaces proposed for future use and the 22 spaces along the south boundary that 
encroach into the neighboring site.  Mr. Branigan said the existing 76 parking 
spaces provide more than enough parking to accommodate the existing use and 
expanded use.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 13, 2010 
  
 
 

3 
 

Mr. Branigan expressed support of the request and recommends the Planning 
Commission approve the Preliminary Site Plan application with the condition to 
eliminate the proposed parking spaces along the south boundary. 
 
[Mr. Vleck arrived at 7:40 p.m.] 
 
The petitioner, Randall DeRuiter of Synergy Group, 39400 Woodward Avenue, 
Bloomfield Hills, was present.   
 
Ken Rogers, Executive Director of Automation Alley, was also present.   
 
Mr. DeRuiter requested consideration to approve the parking to the south, 
conditioned upon securing a cross access easement in the future.   
 
Mr. Savidant said it is required to designate a cross access easement on the site 
plan at the time of site plan approval.   
 
Mr. Branigan explained that should approval of the site plan be conditioned on 
securing a cross access easement in the future, and the easement was not 
secured, then the site plan would be rendered invalid because the condition of the 
site plan was not met. 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a brief explanation of the administrative process of Preliminary 
Site Plan approval. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-047 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the proposed Automation 
Alley addition, located on the west side Bellingham, south of Big Beaver Road (2675 
Bellingham), Section 26, within the R-C zoning district, be granted, subject to the 
following condition: 
 
1. Submittal of a revised site plan indicating the elimination of the denoted future 

parking along the south boundary of the property. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 13, 2010 
  
 
 

4 
 

6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 949 A) – Proposed Troy 
Marketplace Parking Reduction, Southwest Corner of Big Beaver and Rochester 
Roads, Section 27, Currently Zoned B-2 (Community Business) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the Planning Consultant report on the 
proposed Preliminary Site Plan application.  He addressed the parking and parking 
calculations for restaurants.  Mr. Branigan expressed support of the request and 
recommends the Planning Commission approve the parking modification, permitting 
the site to go from a 201-space deficiency to a 218-space deficiency. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked (1) if there were any registered complaints on parking at the site, 
and (2) how many parking spaces are allotted for the health club. 
 
Mr. Branigan said he is not aware of any complaints relating to parking.  He 
indicated his personal observation is that the site has plenty of parking as well as 
easily accessible parking.  Mr. Branigan indicated the health club has plenty of 
parking also because the major retail space next to them is vacant.  He replied that 
based on the report provided, the estimated peak demand for parking at the health 
club on a weekend, including employees, could be as high as 527. 
 
Mike Sullivan of Ramco-Gershenson, 31500 Northwestern Highway, Farmington 
Hills, was present to represent the petitioner. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-048 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the number 
of required parking spaces for the proposed Troy Marketplace uses to 1,438 when 
a total of 1,656 spaces are required on the site based on off-street parking space 
requirements, as per Article XL.  This 218-space reduction is justified through the 
application of ULI parking methodology, as outlined in the Technical Memorandum 
prepared by PEA. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed uses, located on the southwest corner of Big Beaver and Rochester Road, 
Section 27, within the B-2 zoning district, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 13, 2010 
  
 
 

5 
 

7. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 963) – Proposed North Troy 
Park Association, Southwest Corner of South Boulevard and Rochester Road, 
Section 3, Currently Zoned O-1 (Office Building) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the Planning Consultant report on the 
proposed Preliminary Site Plan application.  He addressed the parking and parking 
calculations.  Mr. Branigan expressed support of the request and recommends the 
Planning Commission approve the parking modification, conditioned on the 
restriction that the usable square footage for 6915 Rochester and 89 South 
Boulevard be limited to 65% of the gross square footage.  
 
Ron Radcliffe of Trivest Management Services, Rochester, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  He indicated that co-owners of the property were present 
also. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-049 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the number 
of required parking spaces for the proposed medical office uses to 143 when a total 
of 193 spaces are required on the site based on off-street parking space 
requirements, as per Article XL.  This 50-space reduction is justified through the 
application of ULI and ITE methodologies, as outlined in the Parking Space Analysis 
prepared by Nowak & Fraus. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed medical office uses, located on the southwest corner of South Boulevard 
and Rochester Road, Section 3, within the O-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to 
the following condition: 
 
1. That the usable square footage be limited to 65% for the final build out of 89 

South Boulevard and 6915 Rochester Road. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 13, 2010 
  
 
 

6 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE 
PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 381) – Proposed Renaissance Fencing Club, 
North of Maple, West of Livernois (408 Oliver), Section 28, Currently Zoned M-1 
(Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the Planning Consultant report on the 
proposed Special Use and Preliminary Site Plan application.  He addressed the 
proposed re-occupancy of the vacant industrial building with respect to site 
improvements, occupancy, special use request and parking, inclusive of a shared 
parking agreement with the adjacent landowner.  Mr. Branigan indicated a 
landscape plan is not required, but brought to the attention of the members that 
there are no street trees on site.  He recommends that as a Special Use, the 
Planning Commission require the applicant to provide three street trees as a 
condition to site plan approval. 
 
Mr. Branigan expressed support of the Special Use and Preliminary Site Plan 
application and recommends the Planning Commission approve the application with 
conditions that the single class size is limited to 35 students, that tournaments are 
held only on weekends, and that three street trees are provided along Oliver Street. 
 
Mr. Schultz noted that it might be to the property owner’s advantage to seek and 
receive the required variances for the legal nonconformities. 
 
It was calculated that the class size could be increased to 45 students to correlate 
to the number of parking spaces provided. 
 
Mr. Edmunds addressed the shared access road on site and the sign displayed for 
overflow parking. 
 
Mr. Savidant said City staff would look into the matter to assure that the sign meets 
City sign ordinance requirements. 
 
Mr. Savidant announced the Planning Department received a letter from H & S 
Inspection Service of 422 Oliver Drive, a copy of which was distributed to members 
prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.  The letter, supportive of the Special Use 
request, addresses concerns with the operation of the club. 
 
Mary Bednar, civil engineer, fencer and coach at Renaissance Fencing Club, was 
present to represent the petitioner.   
 
Robert Snyder of 408 Oliver, Troy, was also present. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 13, 2010 
  
 
 

7 
 

Ms. Bednar addressed the shared parking agreement for overflow parking and class 
size.  She expressed concern with the placement and survival of three street trees, 
noting the planting area is limited in size.  Mr. Bednar also indicated that a sign 
permit application for the overflow parking sign is in process. 
 
The placement of the three streets trees was briefly discussed.  It was noted there 
is no requirement to plant the trees in a straight line; they could be staggered.  The 
Planning Department will assist the petitioner with the placement of the street trees. 
 
Mr. Snyder said he is not opposed to planting the trees.  He just wanted to plant 
them in the appropriate manner.  Mr. Snyder briefly addressed the hardships 
property owners are facing in the current economy.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-050 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as 
requested for the proposed indoor commercial recreation use, located north of 
Maple, west of Livernois (408 Oliver), in Section 28, within the M-1 zoning district, 
be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. No more than 45 students shall be permitted in a single class. 
2. Tournaments shall be held only on weekends. 
3. Three (3) street trees shall be provided along Oliver Street. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

8. A REMOVAL OF CONDITION OF PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number 
SP 960) – Proposed Vehma International Improvements, Northwest corner of 
Stephenson and Rankin (1055 Stephenson), Section 35, Currently Zoned M-1 
(Light Industrial) District 
 
Chair Hutson addressed the item to reconsider the condition placed on Preliminary 
Site Plan approval for Vehma International Improvements at 1055 Stephenson 
Highway.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 13, 2010 
  
 
 

8 
 

Mr. Strat said he supports the reconsideration of the condition placed on Preliminary 
Site Plan approval for Vehma.  It was his assumption when the item was before the 
Board for approval that the petitioner was in agreement to the condition.  
 
Chair Hutson noted the initial Preliminary Site Plan met all requirements of the 
Zoning Ordinance and the parent company did not agree with the condition placed 
on the approval.  Chair Hutson said it would be a disservice to the City to lose a big 
development to another community because of a condition to place a berm. 
 
Mr. Schultz said he supports the Resolution in front of the Board tonight.  He said 
the paperwork in front of the Board this evening makes it look like the Planning 
Commission did something nefarious, noting that is not the case.  He asked that the 
record reflect that the petitioner agreed to the berm at the request of the Planning 
Commission, and it was not demanded of them. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-051 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Planning Commission performs an essential function for the 
economic vitality of the City of Troy through its review and approval of preliminary 
site plans for significant new projects and in-fill projects; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Planning Commission, after being presented with a 
preliminary site plan application from Vehma, granted preliminary site plan approval 
for a project located at 1055 Stephenson Highway, which is reported to generate 
365 new jobs in the City of Troy and significant tax revenue; and  
 
WHEREAS, This preliminary site plan approval, approved on June 22, 2010, was 
conditioned on the construction of a berm adjacent to Stephenson Highway, which 
although not required by Troy’s ordinance, was proposed to screen vehicles from 
the roadway; and  
 
WHEREAS, The developer has requested removal of this condition of the 
preliminary site plan approval, and has indicated that the imposition of this condition 
may subsequently impede this significant economic development project.    
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby 
REMOVES the requirement for the construction of a berm along Stephenson 
Highway, which was a condition of the Preliminary Site Plan Approval granted on 
June 22, 21010 for the proposed Vehma International Improvements.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 13, 2010 
  
 
 

9 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby RATIFIES 
the Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the proposed Vehma International 
Improvements, located at 1055 Stephenson Highway, on the Northwest corner of 
Stephenson and Rankin in Section 35, which is within the M-1 zoning district, 
pursuant to Section 03.30.03 of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
8. B TROY/BIRMINGHAM TRANSIT CENTER 

 
Mr. Edmunds said his major concern with the Transit Center Preliminary Site Plan is 
the lack of elevators, although he commended the staff to show the elevators as an 
alternate plan.  Mr. Edmunds addressed the site plan in relation to the bid process 
and grant funding, and offered the following Resolution for consideration. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07- 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission approves the Preliminary Site Plan 
review of the Intermodal Transit Center, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The plan incorporates two elevators to improve accessibility, as a required and 

not an alternate bid package component. 
2. Staff has requested to revise the site plan components so as to not exceed the 

grant funding approved for the project. 
 
There was discussion on the following. 
 

 Elevators; not as alternate plan. 
 Project costs/expenditures. 
 Federal grant funding. 
 Safety concerns. 
 Zoning Ordinance requirements met. 
 Identify concerns, specifically lack of elevators, to City Council. 

 
Mr. Savidant reminded the Planning Commission that its role in the Preliminary Site 
Plan approval process is to make a recommendation to City Council.  He indicated 
that expenditures for the project is a policy decision by City Council.  Mr. Savidant 
explained the Preliminary Site Plan approval process as a joint venture. 
 
There was no support for the motion on the floor.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 13, 2010 
  
 
 

10 
 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
9. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Strat welcomed Allan Motzny. 
 
Mr. Schultz acknowledged the sadness of the tragic death of Saif Jameel and 
extended sincere condolences to the family. 
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:06 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Michael W. Hutson, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2010 PC Minutes\Draft\07-13-10 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 13, 2010 
  
 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on July 13, 2010, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:40 p.m.) 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Wanda Norman, Planning Department Intern 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-045 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Revised Agenda, as prepared. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-046 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Ullmann 
 
RESOLVED, To amend the motion on the floor to add to the agenda discussion on 
the Transit Center as Agenda item #8-B. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Chair Hutson stated that discussion on the transit center might be more appropriate 
at the joint meeting with Birmingham on July 14th when representation from all 
professions is present and available to address questions and concerns. 
 
Mr. Ullmann expressed a desire to discuss some points tonight prior to the joint 
meeting. 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-01b



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 13, 2010 
  
 
 

2 
 

Vote on the amendment to the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Maxwell, Sanzica, Strat, Tagle, Ullmann 
No: Hutson, Schultz 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:40 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution # PC-2010-07-045, as amended. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:40 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-046 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the June 22, 2010 Special/Study meeting 
as prepared. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Maxwell, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Ullmann 
Abstain: Tagle 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:40 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 899 A) – Proposed 
Automation Alley Addition, West side of Bellingham, South of Big Beaver (2675 
Bellingham), Section 26, Currently Zoned R-C (Research Center) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the Planning Consultant report on the 
proposed Preliminary Site Plan application.  Mr. Branigan addressed the 42 parking 
spaces proposed for future use and the 22 spaces along the south boundary that 
encroach into the neighboring site.  Mr. Branigan said the existing 76 parking 
spaces provide more than enough parking to accommodate the existing use and 
expanded use.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 13, 2010 
  
 
 

3 
 

Mr. Branigan expressed support of the request and recommends the Planning 
Commission approve the Preliminary Site Plan application with the condition to 
eliminate the proposed parking spaces along the south boundary. 
 
[Mr. Vleck arrived at 7:40 p.m.] 
 
The petitioner, Randall DeRuiter of Synergy Group, 39400 Woodward Avenue, 
Bloomfield Hills, was present.   
 
Ken Rogers, Executive Director of Automation Alley, was also present.   
 
Mr. DeRuiter requested consideration to approve the parking to the south, 
conditioned upon securing a cross access easement in the future.   
 
Mr. Savidant said it is required to designate a cross access easement on the site 
plan at the time of site plan approval.   
 
Mr. Branigan explained that should approval of the site plan be conditioned on 
securing a cross access easement in the future, and the easement was not 
secured, then the site plan would be rendered invalid because the condition of the 
site plan was not met. 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a brief explanation of the administrative process of Preliminary 
Site Plan approval. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-047 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the proposed Automation 
Alley addition, located on the west side Bellingham, south of Big Beaver Road (2675 
Bellingham), Section 26, within the R-C zoning district, be granted, subject to the 
following condition: 
 
1. Submittal of a revised site plan indicating the elimination of the denoted future 

parking along the south boundary of the property. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 13, 2010 
  
 
 

4 
 

6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 949 A) – Proposed Troy 
Marketplace Parking Reduction, Southwest Corner of Big Beaver and Rochester 
Roads, Section 27, Currently Zoned B-2 (Community Business) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the Planning Consultant report on the 
proposed Preliminary Site Plan application.  He addressed the parking and parking 
calculations for restaurants.  Mr. Branigan expressed support of the request and 
recommends the Planning Commission approve the parking modification, permitting 
the site to go from a 201-space deficiency to a 218-space deficiency. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked (1) if there were any registered complaints on parking at the site, 
and (2) how many parking spaces are allotted for the health club. 
 
Mr. Branigan said he is not aware of any complaints relating to parking.  He 
indicated his personal observation is that the site has plenty of parking as well as 
easily accessible parking.  Mr. Branigan indicated the health club has plenty of 
parking also because the major retail space next to them is vacant.  He replied that 
based on the report provided, the estimated peak demand for parking at the health 
club on a weekend, including employees, could be as high as 527. 
 
Mike Sullivan of Ramco-Gershenson, 31500 Northwestern Highway, Farmington 
Hills, was present to represent the petitioner. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-048 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the number 
of required parking spaces for the proposed Troy Marketplace uses to 1,438 when 
a total of 1,656 spaces are required on the site based on off-street parking space 
requirements, as per Article XL.  This 218-space reduction is justified through the 
application of ULI parking methodology, as outlined in the Technical Memorandum 
prepared by PEA. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed uses, located on the southwest corner of Big Beaver and Rochester Road, 
Section 27, within the B-2 zoning district, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 13, 2010 
  
 
 

5 
 

7. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 963) – Proposed North Troy 
Park Association, Southwest Corner of South Boulevard and Rochester Road, 
Section 3, Currently Zoned O-1 (Office Building) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the Planning Consultant report on the 
proposed Preliminary Site Plan application.  He addressed the parking and parking 
calculations.  Mr. Branigan expressed support of the request and recommends the 
Planning Commission approve the parking modification, conditioned on the 
restriction that the usable square footage for 6915 Rochester and 89 South 
Boulevard be limited to 65% of the gross square footage.  
 
Ron Radcliffe of Trivest Management Services, Rochester, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  He indicated that co-owners of the property were present 
also. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-049 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the number 
of required parking spaces for the proposed medical office uses to 143 when a total 
of 193 spaces are required on the site based on off-street parking space 
requirements, as per Article XL.  This 50-space reduction is justified through the 
application of ULI and ITE methodologies, as outlined in the Parking Space Analysis 
prepared by Nowak & Fraus. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed medical office uses, located on the southwest corner of South Boulevard 
and Rochester Road, Section 3, within the O-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to 
the following condition: 
 
1. That the usable square footage be limited to 65% for the final build out of 89 

South Boulevard and 6915 Rochester Road. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 13, 2010 
  
 
 

6 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE 
PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 381) – Proposed Renaissance Fencing Club, 
North of Maple, West of Livernois (408 Oliver), Section 28, Currently Zoned M-1 
(Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the Planning Consultant report on the 
proposed Special Use and Preliminary Site Plan application.  He addressed the 
proposed re-occupancy of the vacant industrial building with respect to site 
improvements, occupancy, special use request and parking, inclusive of a shared 
parking agreement with the adjacent landowner.  Mr. Branigan indicated a 
landscape plan is not required, but brought to the attention of the members that 
there are no street trees on site.  He recommends that as a Special Use, the 
Planning Commission require the applicant to provide three street trees as a 
condition to site plan approval. 
 
Mr. Branigan expressed support of the Special Use and Preliminary Site Plan 
application and recommends the Planning Commission approve the application with 
conditions that the single class size is limited to 35 students, that tournaments are 
held only on weekends, and that three street trees are provided along Oliver Street. 
 
Mr. Schultz noted that it might be to the property owner’s advantage to seek and 
receive the required variances for the legal nonconformities. 
 
It was calculated that the class size could be increased to 45 students to correlate 
to the number of parking spaces provided. 
 
Mr. Edmunds addressed the shared access road on site and the sign displayed for 
overflow parking. 
 
Mr. Savidant said City staff would look into the matter to assure that the sign meets 
City sign ordinance requirements. 
 
Mr. Savidant announced the Planning Department received a letter from H & S 
Inspection Service of 422 Oliver Drive, a copy of which was distributed to members 
prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.  The letter, supportive of the Special Use 
request, addresses concerns with the operation of the club. 
 
Mary Bednar, civil engineer, fencer and coach at Renaissance Fencing Club, was 
present to represent the petitioner.   
 
Robert Snyder of 408 Oliver, Troy, was also present. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 13, 2010 
  
 
 

7 
 

Ms. Bednar addressed the shared parking agreement for overflow parking and class 
size.  She expressed concern with the placement and survival of three street trees, 
noting the planting area is limited in size.  Mr. Bednar also indicated that a sign 
permit application for the overflow parking sign is in process. 
 
The placement of the three streets trees was briefly discussed.  It was noted there 
is no requirement to plant the trees in a straight line; they could be staggered.  The 
Planning Department will assist the petitioner with the placement of the street trees. 
 
Mr. Snyder said he is not opposed to planting the trees.  He just wanted to plant 
them in the appropriate manner.  Mr. Snyder briefly addressed the hardships 
property owners are facing in the current economy.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-050 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as 
requested for the proposed indoor commercial recreation use, located north of 
Maple, west of Livernois (408 Oliver), in Section 28, within the M-1 zoning district, 
be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. No more than 45 students shall be permitted in a single class. 
2. Tournaments shall be held only on weekends. 
3. Three (3) street trees shall be provided along Oliver Street. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

8. A REMOVAL OF CONDITION OF PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number 
SP 960) – Proposed Vehma International Improvements, Northwest corner of 
Stephenson and Rankin (1055 Stephenson), Section 35, Currently Zoned M-1 
(Light Industrial) District 
 
Chair Hutson addressed the item to reconsider the condition placed on Preliminary 
Site Plan approval for Vehma International Improvements at 1055 Stephenson 
Highway.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 13, 2010 
  
 
 

8 
 

Mr. Strat said he supports the reconsideration of the condition placed on Preliminary 
Site Plan approval for Vehma.  It was his assumption when the item was before the 
Board for approval that the petitioner was in agreement to the condition.  
 
Chair Hutson noted the initial Preliminary Site Plan met all requirements of the 
Zoning Ordinance and the parent company did not agree with the condition placed 
on the approval.  Chair Hutson said it would be a disservice to the City to lose a big 
development to another community because of a condition to place a berm. 
 
Mr. Schultz said he supports the Resolution in front of the Board tonight.  He said 
the paperwork in front of the Board this evening makes it look like the Planning 
Commission did something nefarious, noting that is not the case.  He asked that the 
record reflect that the petitioner agreed to the berm at the request of the Planning 
Commission, and it was not demanded of them. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-051 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Planning Commission performs an essential function for the 
economic vitality of the City of Troy through its review and approval of preliminary 
site plans for significant new projects and in-fill projects; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Planning Commission, after being presented with a 
preliminary site plan application from Vehma, granted preliminary site plan approval 
for a project located at 1055 Stephenson Highway, which is reported to generate 
365 new jobs in the City of Troy and significant tax revenue; and  
 
WHEREAS, This preliminary site plan approval, approved on June 22, 2010, was 
conditioned on the construction of a berm adjacent to Stephenson Highway, which 
although not required by Troy’s ordinance, was proposed to screen vehicles from 
the roadway; and  
 
WHEREAS, The developer has requested removal of this condition of the 
preliminary site plan approval, and has indicated that the imposition of this condition 
may subsequently impede this significant economic development project.    
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby 
REMOVES the requirement for the construction of a berm along Stephenson 
Highway, which was a condition of the Preliminary Site Plan Approval granted on 
June 22, 21010 for the proposed Vehma International Improvements.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 13, 2010 
  
 
 

9 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby RATIFIES 
the Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the proposed Vehma International 
Improvements, located at 1055 Stephenson Highway, on the Northwest corner of 
Stephenson and Rankin in Section 35, which is within the M-1 zoning district, 
pursuant to Section 03.30.03 of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
8. B TROY/BIRMINGHAM TRANSIT CENTER 

 
Mr. Edmunds said his major concern with the Transit Center Preliminary Site Plan is 
the lack of elevators, although he commended the staff to show the elevators as an 
alternate plan.  Mr. Edmunds addressed the site plan in relation to the bid process 
and grant funding, and offered the following Resolution for consideration. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07- 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission approves the Preliminary Site Plan 
review of the Intermodal Transit Center, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The plan incorporates two elevators to improve accessibility, as a required and 

not an alternate bid package component. 
2. Staff has requested to revise the site plan components so as to not exceed the 

grant funding approved for the project. 
 
There was discussion on the following. 
 

 Elevators; not as alternate plan. 
 Project costs/expenditures. 
 Federal grant funding. 
 Safety concerns. 
 Zoning Ordinance requirements met. 
 Identify concerns, specifically lack of elevators, to City Council. 

 
Mr. Savidant reminded the Planning Commission that its role in the Preliminary Site 
Plan approval process is to make a recommendation to City Council.  He indicated 
that expenditures for the project is a policy decision by City Council.  Mr. Savidant 
explained the Preliminary Site Plan approval process as a joint venture. 
 
There was no support for the motion on the floor.   





pallottaba
Text Box
N-02a





































 

 
 
August 10, 2010 
 
 
TO:    Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Inquiry From Council Member Regarding Park Signs 
 
 
Background: 
 
 At the City Council meeting on August 9, a council member inquired about the posting of signs at 

parks by organizations using the facilities. Specific to the inquiry was a group using Firefighters 
Park on August 7, 2010. The group had authorization to use the park but did not request approval 
for the posting of signs. 

 Chapter 26 of the City Code (Parks- General Regulations) prohibits signs without authorization of 
the City Manager or his/her designee.  

 The code reads, in part, as follows: 
26.10 Merchandising and Advertising … No person shall paste, glue, tack or otherwise post any 
sign, placard, advertisement, or inscription whatsoever in any park, and no person shall erect or 
cause to be erected any sign whatsoever in any park (with the exception of directional signs that 
are authorized by the City Manager or his/her designee).  The exception to this prohibition is for 
advertising banners used during special events for non-profit community based organizations, as 
long as approval for the placement of said banners is granted by the City Manager and/or his 
designee. The banners shall be limited to 48 square feet in size, and shall not advertise tobacco, 
alcohol or political candidates. 

 In the past, signs directing people to an event in the park have ordinarily been allowed.  
 The enforcement of this issue has been completed by parks staff, however, budget reductions 

have eliminated staff stationed at parks resulting in limited and sporadic enforcement. 
 

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-05



pallottaba
Text Box
O-01

























pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box






















































	AGENDA: August 16, 2010
	COVER MEMO
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET
	ROLL CALL:
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations Scheduled
	On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the months of May and June 2010, Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart will present a check in the amount of $724.00 to the Boys & Girls Club of Troy.


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	PUBLIC COMMENT:
	RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT
	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 No Postponed Items

	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled
	I-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled
	I-3 Request for Closed Session – None Requested
	I-4 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement Policy

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: None Submitted
	J-5 Amendment to Agreement Between Troy Historical Society and City of Troy to Expand the Troy Museum and Historic Village

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at some future point in time): None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS
	M-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS
	N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Planning Commission/Draft – July 13, 2010
	Planning Commission/Final – July 13, 2010

	N-2 Department Reports:
	City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters – 30th Annual Actuarial Valuation Report – December 31, 2009

	N-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted
	N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted
	N-5  Memorandum from Carol K. Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director Regarding  “Inquiry from Council Member Regarding Park Signs”

	STUDY ITEMS
	O-1  Code of Conduct

	CLOSED SESSION:
	P-1 Closed Session – None Requested

	ADJOURNMENT




